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Front Cover:   Whitewaterôs Old City Hall building once 

served as the center for City Offices, the Library, and 

Fire Department.  Construction of the building, with 

Romanesque Revival Architecture, started in Nov. 1899.  

The building was dedicated in April 1900, and operated 

as Whitewaterôs City Hall until 1960s before being 

demolished in August 1971.  Image courtesy of the  

Irvin L. Young Library. 
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City of Whitewater  ~ A Brief History  

Whitewater received its name from a tribe of 

Potawatomi Native Americans that had settled along the 

Whitewater River (known today as the Whitewater 

Creek).  The name Wau-be-gan-naw-po-cat, meaning 

ñwhite water,ò was given to the area due to the white 

sands which lay at the bottom of the creek.  

 

The Whitewater area was first settled in 1836, 

when Alvin Foster made his first stake on the land by 

marking his name on a tree.  In 1837, Samuel Prince built 

the first log cabin near the current site of Whitewaterôs 

Indian 

Mounds Park.   

After a six 

day trip on 

foot, 20 

settlers 

arrived here 

from 

Milwaukee 

and started 

the early  

 makings of 

Whitewater.  It was not until 1839, with Dr. Trippeôs 

donation of money for the Old Stone Mill, that 

Whitewater started to grow.  The mill helped to create the 

new industrial hub of Whitewater.   

 

Three main arteries, Whitewater, Main and Center 

Streets were laid out in 1840.  In 1852, the first railway 

 Old Stone Mill (Image courtesy of Irvin L. Young Library) 
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to cross Wisconsin laid its tracks through Whitewater, 

spurring industrial growth.  Winchester and DeWolf 

Plow Factory (1850), Esterly Reaper Works (1857), and 

Winchester and Partridge Wagon Works (1860) were 

some of Walworth Countyôs first and biggest industries.  

The Esterly 

Reaper Works 

was the 

largest 

employer in 

the 1880ôs, 

employing 

525.  Esterly 

employees 

built homes  

 close to the  

 

factory on the east side of the city; hence, the 

surrounding area became known as ñReaperville.ò  

Various industries fueled Whitewaterôs growth until 1892 

when the Esterly Reaper Works moved to Minnesota and 

the Wagon Works shut down, thus marking the end of 

Whitewaterôs first industrial era. 

 

With the loss of two major industries, Whitewater 

lost one quarter of its population and did not regain its 

1890 population level until 1950.  During the World 

Wars and the Great Depression Whitewater relied on 

small trade and industries to sustain its economy.  

Agricultural products, including eggs, farm produce, 

cheese, dairy products, livestock and small game, made 

Whitewaterôs Main Street  
(Image courtesy of Irvin L. Young Library) 
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up 66 percent of Whitewaterôs trade at the time,.  

Meanwhile, the Whitewater Normal School (which later 

evolved into the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater) 

went about its business of training teachers.  The School 

made several changes through years, including 

diversifying their studies.  After World War II,  veterans 

returning from war boosted enrollment, sending this 

school well on its way to becoming the University it is 

today.  Between the University and the manufacturing 

and service industries we have today, Whitewater has 

seen many changes.  Whitewater looks forward to this 

century and what the future has in store . . . 
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Bassett House ~ 708 W. Main Street 

 

 
  Image courtesy of Irvin L. Young Library 

 

This Italianate-style house built in 1857 has many 

decorative details including a bracketed frieze and bay 

window with mansard roof, brackets, modillion blocks, 

and keystones.  The rear wing was added in 1878.  The 

Thomas Bassett family lived in the house for 70 years.  

Since 1928 it has been the home of the Federation of 

Womenôs Clubs. 
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W. DeWolf House ~ 707-709 W. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
This late-Italianate home was built in 1873 by 

William DeWolf.  DeWolf joined Winchester as business 

partners in a plow company.  In 1867, DeWolf sold his 

share of the business to a Mr. John Partridge.  The 

company then became Whitewater Wagon Works.  After 

selling his share of the plow business, DeWolf went on to 

own a local hardware store. 
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Engebretsen-Dorr  ~ 622 W. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

This Queen Anne-style house was built in 1895.  

Edward Engebretsen was a dry goods merchant, as well 

as Whitewaterôs first Treasurer and second Mayor.  John 

Dorr, who worked as the head of the Electric Companyôs 

sales department, was his son-in law. This was the first 

house in Whitewater to be wired for electricity.   The 

house is now the Victoria on Main Bed and Breakfast.  

An urn given from the original builder to the 

Engebretsens still sits on a pedestal in the home. 
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G. W. Esterly House ~ 604 W. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

 Built in 1876, this late Italianate house was owned 

by G. W. Esterly (son of George Esterly, founder of 

Esterly Reaper Works).   The house was designed by 

H.C. Koch, a well known architect from Milwaukee. Of 

special interest is the art glass in the inside foyer.  It was 

later the home of Frank Hyer, President of the Teacherôs 

College (UW-Whitewater).  The carriage house that sat 

behind the house has now been converted to a house. 
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Winchester House ~ 532 W. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
 This Italianate-style house was built in 1851 by 

Nelson Salisbury.  Winchester, the original owner of the 

house, was the founder of the Winchester and Partridge 

Wagon Works Co. (which was located on Whitewater St. 

near the corner of Center St).  The house was also owned 

by prominent business man, Mr. Dadmun, who was 

owner of the local feed mill.  Currently the house is used 

for Meyerôs Chiropractic Office and student housing. 
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Sanger Marsh House ~ W. 522 Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
 This early Italianate-style house was built in 1861 

by Nelson Salisbury and is thought to be the most intact 

house of this architectural style in the City of 

Whitewater.  The house was at one time owned by Henry 

Kiser who lived upstairs and had his law office 

downstairs.  Originally this house, along with many 

along Main Street, stood on a 9 1/2 acre lot extending 

back to what is now Starin Road. 
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Leon Pescheret House ~ 521 W. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

 This Tudor Revival-style house was built in 1912 

by Mr. Littlejohn.  It was originally owned by Johnny 

Ohlnhaus who was a barber downtown.  It became the 

home of Leon Pescheret, Whitewaterôs well-known artist 

and color etcher.  Originally born in London, England, 

Pescheret moved here in 1910 and into this house in 

1930.  Pescheret renovated the home in the late 1930ôs 

and  is now the site of Mercy Medical Rehabilitation 

Center.   
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J.J. Starin House ~ 507 W. Main Street 

 

 
Image courtesy of Station 13 

 
 This Greek Revival-style house was built in 1860 

by Mr. Parker and later sold to Jacob Starin. The house 

was remodeled in 1912 and 1924.  In 1920, the fanlight-

topped French doors and large veranda were added by 

owner, Sander Hoyum.    The first floor was an elegant 

restaurant ï The Green Shutters.  This site was the first 

Sunday School site in Whitewater in 1841.  Today it is 

the site of Mercy Whitewater Medical Clinic. 
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Kinney-Coxe House ~ 504 W. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

 This house was built in 1851.  It features a Greek 

Revival-style with Second Empire and Italianate 

alterations.  Mrs. Rosepha Trippe lived here.  The 

Northeast corner of this lot features the ñTerritorial Oak.ò  

A pair of trees called the ñTerritorial Oaks,ò used as 

survey reference points in 1836, were once found here.  

The Rosepha Trippe property also had the first log school 

built on it in 1840. 
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T.D. Weeks / Hall House ~ 452 W. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
 The house was originally built in 1849 in the 

Greek Revival-style for S. C. Hall, a merchant and 

packing plant owner.  A large addition was added in 1879 

to the west side of the home, taking on a Second Empire 

style with Italianate elements.  The elegant frame entry 

porch on the south façade was a later addition.   It is now 

the current site of Harrison, Williams, and McDonell 

Law Offices. 
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Newton M. Littlejohn ~ 429 W. Main Street 

 

 
Image courtesy of Nancy and Jerry Wendt 

 
 The Littlejohn house was built in 1859 for Mr. 

Littlejohn who was a lumberman, land investor, and 

Whitewaterôs first village President.  The house, while 

once owned by the First English Lutheran Church, was 

used as a Parish House where Sunday School classes 

were held.  The house is a cream brick with Italianate 

details.  It is decorated with brackets, an elaborate bay 

window, oculus windows, and an Italianate porch. 
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Hamilton House ~ 328 W. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
 This Second Empire-style House, with alterations 

from the Queen Anne-style, was built in 1861 and served 

as part of the Underground Railroad.  The house was 

significantly enlarged in 1881 and Queen Anne-style 

details were added in the 1890s.  The house has had 

several owners: 1860ôs-Posey, 1894-Smith and McKey, 

1903- Herbert and Ella Hamilton, 1950ôs - a fraternity 

where actor and comedian John Belushi once lived. In 

1991, the Alexander Company did a major restoration.  

In 1994 the Andersonôs opened it as a B & B.  The house 

is now owned by Jim and Kathy Fleming who operate the 

Hamilton Bed and Breakfast. 
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Nelson Salisbury House ~ 404 W. North  Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
 Nelson Salisbury settled in Whitewater in 1856.  

Prior to that he lived in New York and worked as a 

steersman on the Delaware and Hudson Canal.    He also 

worked as a laborer for Prosper Cravath in New York.  

He moved here in 1841 working as a farmer, banker, and 

eventually builder.  He built three of Whitewaterôs finest 

homes:  the Sanger Marsh home, the Winchester home 

and in 1874 this Italianate style residence. Salisbury lived 

in the house until his death in 1880. 
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Fetherston House ~ 113 North Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
The area, where this home is located, used to be 

the ice skating rink and Whitewaterôs ñOld Swimming 

Holeò where boys were allowed to swim one day and 

girls the next.   High banks kept the water pooled for 

swimming.  The area was filled in thereby creating the 

two streams that flow on either side of the property. The 

house was moved to this site from its original location on 

Center Street, where the Whitewater Post Office is now 

located.  Dr. Mumma owned the house while at the 

Center Street location, whereas Mr. Fetherston, who ran 

the Grist Mill owned it at its North Street location. 
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Klinger House ~ 220 N. Jefferson Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

The Klinger House, also known as the 

Brewmeister House, was built in 1855 and is a fine 

example of Greek Revival-style.  The house had a tunnel 

that led from the south wall of the basement to the north 

wall of the old brewery that was located next door.  It is 

believed that the owner had the tunnel dug because he 

disliked walking through inclement weather.   The tunnel 

has since been filled in.  Dave Williams, whose family 

has been in the area for four generations is the current 

owner. 
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Pleger House ~ 240 N. Jefferson Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

The first land owner in Whitewater was William 

Birge.  In 1839, Birge owned 80 acres.  The next year 

Birge sold the farm to George Wilson, who built the 

house in 1840.  In 1845 the house was sold to Asaph 

Potts.  Later, this house was known as the Chicago House 

since owner Ms. Pleger spent much time in Chicago.  

The house was designed to help the Underground 

Railroad and, although the house is not open to the 

public, the tunnel is still there today.  
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Melster Pop Factory ~ 147 N. George Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
From the 1880ôs until 1905, this house was the site 

of the Melster Pop Factory which produced many flavors 

of pop.  The company was mainly a bottling and delivery 

service although kids from the area remember going 

there to get a bottle of pop.  In 1898 Melster was credited 

for inventing a bottle stopper to seal a bottle.  The factory 

was later sold to Schmitt Brothers and after that 

converted into two apartments. 
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Lyman Wight Octagon ~ 127 N. Newcomb Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
Built in 1862, this Octagon House was an 

architectural innovation promoted as an economical and 

functional home.  The Wight House is a small, two-story 

frame structure with wide overhanging eaves, a carved 

frieze, and brackets.  The house was built for Lyman 

Wight, an inventor who worked at the Esterly Reaper 

Works.  Octagon houses are quite rare, and this example 

is of special note because of its small size. 
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Zimmerman House ~ 157 N. Newcomb Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

This house was built by Mr. Lohmiller for Mr. 

William Farmer.  The house was built with the prospect 

of a rail line going through the area; and that rooms could 

be rented by railroad workers.  The railroad didnôt come 

until later, but the rooms ended up being rented out to 

Esterly Workers.  In the first half of the 1900, the first 

floor was a grocery store. 
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Carlsen House ~ 840 E. Main Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
This house was built in the 1850s.  In 1872, 

Christen Carlson and his wife Nelly Pederson moved 

here from Sweden.  He was a plasterer and wallpaperer. 

Later, he was a janitor at the Eastside School.  The house 

has had alterations in 1870-80ôs (a kitchen), 1950ôs 

(enclosed porch), and in the 1970ôs.  The house is owned 

by the Therrian family since 1983.  This area was known 

as Reaperville since most of the houses were owned by 

Esterly Reaperworks employees. 
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Dorr House ~ 208 S. Wisconsin Street 

 

 
Image courtesy of Dick and Pam Kraus 

 

This house was owned by the townôs blacksmith, 

Tim Dorr.  Some time later, the house became the Ted 

Johnson Grocery Store until the 1960s.  Since the 1970s 

it has been the Floral Villa flower and gift shop, owned 

by Dick and Pam Kraus. 



 

 Page 25 

Birge House ~ 409 S. Whiton Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
This home, built in the 1840s, was once owned by 

William Birge, an early Whitewater settler.  William 

Birge was the father of Julius Birge.  The Birge fountain 

located on Whitewaterôs Main Street, was donated to the 

City in honor of the birth of Julius Birge.  Mr. Erwin 

Castle, who worked at the condensery, bought the house 

in 1939 for $1900.  The house is now owned by Vernon 

Castle.  The house was remodeled extensively in the 

1980s.   
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Coppins House ~ 123 S. Church Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
This house was once owned by George and Jane 

Coppins.  George was an undertaker.  Jane later helped 

start the Skindingsrude Funeral Home.  She had an 

agreement with Skindingsrude to look at her shades each 

day.  If they were up, she was fine; if they were down, he 

was to check on her.  One day the shades were down, he 

checked on her, and she had passed away.  Currently, the 

building is the home of the First English Lutheran 

Church Thrift Shop. 
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Smith -Allen House ~ 445 W. Center Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
Built in 1856, this house features a three-story 

tower in the Italian Villa-style.    The house was built by 

Porter and Hunter, local builders, for E. A. Smith, a local 

merchant.  Other owners include:  Nathan Allen, a 

lumberman, and Teacherôs College (UW-Whitewater) 

President Robert Williams.  It was once restored by 

Galen and Rose Smith. 
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Humphrey-Ambrose House ~ 724 W. Center Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

This stately Queen Anne-style house was 

originally owned by Haywood Humphrey, owner of the 

Century Pen Company.  The house was later the boyhood 

home of author/historian Stephen E. Ambrose.  It was 

built between 1887ï1892.  The house retains many 

elegant structural and decorative features typical of this 

style.  The house features original beveled glass windows 

and an embossed metal fireplace facing.  
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McCready House ~ 727 W. Center Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
This High Victorian Italianate-style home was 

built in 1877.  Charles Stowers, a Methodist minister, 

purchased the home in 1877 for $700.  In 1880, he sold it 

to Orlando Gallt.  Gallt was involved in the mercantile 

business and paid $4,000 for the property.  The basement 

still has a dirt floor coal room and the exterior and 

interior trim is original.  The property has been owned by 

William Birge, Ansel Salisbury, Timothy Abbott and 

Harold Anderson. 
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Partridge House ~ 745 W. Center Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
This Italianate-style house was built by John and 

Henrietta Partridge in 1856.  Partridge migrated to 

Whitewater in 1846 and set up a mercantile business.  

From 1857 to 1892 he was a partner in the Winchester 

and Partridge Manufacturing Co., which made popular 

wagons, including the ñWhitewater Wagon.ò  This large 

double-bricked house is topped with two widow walks, 

and has two white marble and two black slate fireplaces.  
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F. J. Starin Mansion ~ 131 N. Fremont Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

The firm of Cook, Roseman, and Kjujn built this 

home for civil engineer and land speculator Frederick 

Starin, who remodeled it in 1878.  Originally a two-story 

cream brick house which became much larger when a 

mansard roof was added to a third story, making a fourth 

floor ballroom.  Once used as student housing, the 

mansion was restored by Dan and Jean Sable and is now 

known as the ñSable House.ò 
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Starin/Converse House ~ 161 N. Fremont Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

F.J. Starin built this two story, yellow brick 

Italianate-style house in 1869 for use by his daughter, 

Margaret, and son-in-law, Elliot Converse.  In 1877 

Elliot Converse left town and Margaret returned to the 

Starin Mansion, owned by her Father.  Her Father paid 

the taxes on 161 Fremont Street after 1877.  The front 

porch was added to the home in the 1880s.  Note the 

three ranked façade openings with two front doors and 

lovely fan lights.   
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Dahlen/Brigham Home ~ 166 N. Fremont Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

This two story white frame Queen Anne-style 

home was originally built by Edward Dahlen sometime 

between 1885 and 1891.  Edward Dahlen, a Norwegian 

immigrant, came to Whitewater to work for George 

Esterly.  The Brigham family has lived in the home for 

over 50 years.  There is a 3-story tower at the left corner 

of the front façade, and at Christmastime there is a 

Christmas tree displayed in each of the tower windows. 
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Henderson House ~ 541 Harper Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

The Henderson House was built in 1859.  It was 

used as the high school from 1883-1885 where twelve 

students were instructed by Odie Ewing. The Henderson 

family has lived there since 1902 and has owned the 

property since 1908.  The land was originally purchased 

from the U.S. Government in 1839 by Asaph Pratt as a 

640 acre plot.  Various lots were sold off through the 

years including a 1 acre lot for $125 to the new railroad 

in 1852. 
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Whitewater ~ Map of South & West Sides 

           
Numbers refer to the pages on which the entries are listed.
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City of Whitewater ~ 
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Historical Tour Map 
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Pope Home ~ 514 S. Janesville Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 

Built in the 1860s, this house was originally a 

residence but is now used as offices.  The current owner, 

Craig Pope, is restoring the house to its original state.  A 

front and back porch as well as a back addition have been 

removed.  The limestone basement has been restored.  

The original brick carriage house that stood behind the 

house will be replicated.  The house has original trim, 

décor, and floors. 
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Portman Home ~ 302 S. Prince Street 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
This house, built in 1851, was owned at one time 

by ñDaddyò Tice and his emphysema-stricken wife.  It 

served as a boarding house for 7 to 8 female practicing 

teachers who rented the upstairs.  In lieu of paying board, 

the teachers would take care of ñDaddyò Ticeôs wife.  

There have been 3 additions:  changing the front door 

location, then an addition of a bedroom, kitchen, and 

indoor bathroom, and then a 3-season room.  The house 

is currently owned by Penny Portman. 
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Calvary Cemetery 

 

 
Photograph by R. Alan Luckett 

 
Lucinda and Nelson Fryer donated this land in 

1865 intending it to be the Catholic Cemetery. In 1914, 

the Calvary Cemetery Association was formed to 

improve the grounds.  Among the improvements was a 

stone gateway entrance.  In 1960, they sold 4 acres of 

land for $16,000 to the State of Wisconsin to build two 

dormitories.  Calvary Cemetery is one of two private 

cemeteries located within an American university 

campus. 












































































